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These consol i dated cases are before ne on petitions for
assessnment of civil penalty filed by the Secretary of Labor,
acting through his Mne Safety and Health Adm nistration (NMSHA)
against LAC Bullfrog, Inc., Lorenzo Ceballos and Tinothy Harter
pursuant to sections 105 and 110 of the Federal M ne Safety and
Heal th Act of 1977, 30 U . S.C. 88 815 and 820. The petitions
all ege that the conpany violated section 57.6375 of the
Secretary’s mandatory health and safety standards, 30 C. F. R
8§ 57.6375, and that Messrs. Ceballos and Harter, as agents of the
conpany, know ngly authorized, ordered or carried out the
violation. The Secretary seeks penalties of $1,500.00 agai nst
t he conpany and $1, 000. 00 and $1, 200. 00 agai nst Cebal | os and
Harter, respectively. For the reasons set forth below, | find
that the conpany violated the regulation, that Ceball os, but not
Harter, knowingly carried out the violation and | assess
penal ties of $1,500.00 and $500. 00, respectively.

A hearing was held on Novenber 1 and 2, 1995, in Henderson
Nevada. In addition, the parties filed post-hearing briefs in
these matters.

FACTUAL SETTI NG

The Bullfrog gold mne in Beatty, Nevada, has both an open
pit and an underground section. The underground section consists
of a series of horizontal passages, called “drifts,” running off
of a main decline, which follow the gold vein. The drifts are
identified and distinguished by their elevation in neters and
whet her they go north or south.

On Decenber 7, 1993, a ground fall of about 40 to 50 tons
occurred in the 906 South Drift. It was preceded by a blast in
the 918 North Drift. The blast occurred in a portion of the 918
North Drift which is directly over the area in the 906 South
Drift where the ground fall occurred.



Jack Bi ngham the CGeneral Manager of the m ne, Tinothy
Harter, the CGeneral M ne Foreman, and Lorenzo Ceball os, a
Production Supervisor, were at the end of the 906 South Drift
when the ground fell fromthe roof. They discovered the fallen
ground when they were backing their vehicle along the drift and
encountered dust and then the ground fall. The nmen had to | eave
their vehicle and clinb over the fallen ground to get out of the
drift.

MSHA | nspector Henry J. Mall was assigned to investigate the
incident. As a result of his investigation, he issued Citation
No. 4130929, pursuant to section 104(d)(1) of the Act, 30 U S.C
8§ 814(d) (1), on Decenber 8. It alleged a violation of section
57.6375 of the Regul ati ons because

at approxinmately 845 [sic] AM 12-7-93 a heading in 918
North was bl asted wi thout anple warning given to the
(3) enpl oyees who had entered 906 South area which was
directly under the 918 North headi ng where the bl ast
was to occur. The distance between the areas is
approximately 8 neters (25 ft). Wen the bl ast
occur[r]ed approximately 40 to 50 tons of materi al
above the anchorage zone supported wwth 6 ft roof bolts
canme down in the 906 South travel way. The (3)

enpl oyees in 906 South were approxi mately 300 neters
(984 ft) fromwhere the fall of ground occur[r]ed. The
conpany has a witten policy dated 12-3-92 - 3-23-92
[sic] on clearing the areas effected [sic] from[sic]
the blasting that is to take place. On this date 12-7-
93 the conpany failed to follow a safe practice of
warning their [sic] enployees of the blast in 918 North
and did not follow conpany witten policy. This is an
unwar rant abl e failure.

(Govt. Ex. H)



Speci al Investigator Dennis J. Pal mer conducted an
i nvestigation of the incident during April 1994 for the purpose
of determning if the violation had been knowi ngly conmtted by
any agents of the conpany. As a result of his investigation, the
Secretary filed civil penalty petitions against Ceball os and
Harter under section 110(c) of the Act, 30 U.S.C. 8§ 820(c).?

FI NDI NGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

Section 57.6375 is entitled Loading and bl ast site
restrictions and requires that: “Anple warning shall be given
before the blasts are fired. Al persons shall be cleared and
renmoved from areas endangered by the blast. Cear access to
exits shall be provided for personnel firing the rounds.”?

The issue in this case is whether the three nen were in an
area endangered by the blast fromwhich they should have been
cl eared and renoved. | conclude that the 906 South was an area
endangered by the blast and that the nmen shoul d have been cleared
or renoved fromthe drift prior to the bl ast.

WAs the 906 South an area endangered by the bl ast?

The Comm ssion has not had occasion to address the issue of
what constitutes an area endangered by the blast with regard to
this regulation. However, it has discussed section 77.1303(h),
30 CF.R 8 77.1303(h), having to do with surface coal m ning,
which has a sinmlar requirement.® Wth regard to that
regul ation, the Conm ssion held that:

! Section 110(c) provides, in pertinent part, that:
“Whenever a corporate operator violates a nmandatory health or

safety standard . . . any director, officer, or agent of such
corporation who know ngly authorized, ordered, or carried out
such violation . . . shall be subject to the sane civil penalties

2 This regulation was effective until Decenber 31, 1993. It
has since been replaced by section 57.6306(f), 30 C.F.R
§ 57.6306(f).

3 Section 77.1303(h) provides that: “Anple warning shall be
given before blasts are fired. Al persons shall be cleared and
removed fromthe blasting area unless suitable blasting shelters
are provided to protect nmen endangered by concussion or flyrock
from bl asting.”



To establish a violation of the standard, based on a
failure to clear and renove all persons fromthe

bl asting area, the Secretary nust prove that an
operator has failed to clear and renove all persons
fromthe “blasting area,” as that termis defined in
section 77.2(f). This requires the Secretary to
establish the factors that a reasonably prudent person
famliar with mne blasting and the protective purposes
of the standard woul d have considered in making a
determ nation under all of the circunstances posed by
the bl asting issue.

Hobet M ning & Construction Co., 9 FMSHRC 200, 202 (February
1987). The Commi ssion went on to say that “[a]n operator’s pre-
shot determ nation of what constitutes a blasting area is based
not only upon the results of prior shots, but al so depends upon a
nunber of variables affecting the upcom ng shot.” Id.

Al t hough section 77.1303(h) uses the term “bl asting area”
and section 57.6375 uses “area endangered by the blast,” they
mean essentially the sanme thing. Thus, it would follow that if
t he conpany had not included the 906 South in the area endangered
by the blast in the 918 North, the “reasonably prudent person”
test would be applied to determ ne whether it shoul d have been
i ncluded. However, it is not necessary to go through the
requirenents of the test in this case because it is undisputed
that it was the mne's practice to clear the | evel above and the
| evel below the | evel being bl asted.

Since the 906 South is the |evel below the 918 North and
since two mners were, in fact, cleared fromthat area before the
bl ast, the conmpany obviously had determ ned that it was an area
endangered by the blast. Therefore, the Respondents’ argunent,
intheir brief, that the 906 South was not an area endangered by
the bl ast under the “reasonably prudent person” test, is
i napposite. The conpany is bound by its pre-shot determ nation.

Were the nmners in the endangered area at the tine of the blast?

Havi ng determ ned that the 906 South was an area endangered
by the blast, the next issue is whether Bingham Harter and
Cebal l os were in the endangered area at the tine of the bl ast.
They argue that they did not enter the 906 South until sonetine
after the blast in the 918 North. On the other hand, the
Secretary submts that the nen were at the end of the 906 South
when the blast occurred. Finding the Respondents’ statenents
made at the tinme of the incident nore credible than the testinony



at the hearing, | determne that the nen were at the end of the
906 South at the tinme of the blast.

| nspector Mall arrived at the mne on the afternoon of the
i nci dent and began his investigation. Nevada State |nspector
Edward M Tomany arrived to investigate the incident the next
day. On Decenber 8, they interviewed several of the w tnesses
t oget her.

According to their notes taken at the tine, Louis
Schlichting, who did not testify at the hearing, told themthat
he was the assistant foreman in charge of the blasts in the 918
North and South. He further told themthat he cleared two
enpl oyees out of the 906 South when getting ready to blast the
918 North, but that he did not barricade the 906 South or do
anything to prevent anyone fromentering it during the bl ast.
Finally, he told themthat he assunmed that the 906 South was
cl ear when he bl asted and that he would not have bl asted the 918
North if he had known that anyone was in the 906 Sout h.

According to their notes and testinony at the hearing,
Lorenzo Ceballos told themthat he knew that both the 918 North
and South were going to be blasted and that while on the decline
bet ween the 918 and the 906 he heard a bl ast which he assuned was
the 918 North. Additionally, he told themthat the three
supervisors were at the end of the 906 when the 918 North was
bl asted. |Inspector Mall testified at the hearing that Ceball os
later told himthat the blast he heard was the first bl ast
(apparently the 918 South) and that the second blast occurred
while he was in the 906.

TimHarter told the inspectors that he was not aware that
the 918 North was going to be shot. There is no indication that
ei ther inspector asked himwhere he was when the blast and the
ground fall occurred. However, other enployees of the m ne gave
the inspectors the inpression that the blast and the ground fal
had happened whil e the supervisors were in the 906 Sout h.

| nspector Mall concluded that the blast heard on the decline
must have been the 918 South and that the 918 North bl ast
occurred while the supervisors were at the end of the 906 Sout h.
Consequently he wote the citation in question. On receiving the
citation and at the cl ose-out conference, no one fromthe conpany
suggested to the inspector that he had his facts w ong.

| nspector Tomany apparently cane to the sanme concl usion as
| nspector Mall. His notes state that he notified his boss that
“3 enpl oyees, J. Bingham T. Harter, L. Ceballos were at the face



of the 906 s when the 918 north bl ast dropped ground to obstruct
exit of the 906 south.” (CGovt. Ex. V at 5.)

It appears that no one tal ked with Bi ngham during the
i nvestigation and he evidently was not present at the cl ose-out
conference. However, Special Investigator Palnmer interviewed him
in April 1994. Palner testified, and his notes indicate, that
Bi ngham who was no | onger working for the conpany, told himthat
he felt the second bl ast while backing out of the drift and that
they | ater canme across dust and the ground fall.

Pal mer al so interviewed Ceballos and Harter. By this tineg,
Cebal | os’ story had changed sonmewhat. He said that the blast in
the 918 South had to have gone off first; that the blast the
supervi sors heard while on the decline was in the 918 North. He
stated that the 918 South is a long drift and the 918 North a
shorter drift and that Schlichting told himin a discussion after
Mal | s investigation that he had set off the 918 South first
because it would be dangerous to light the fuses in any other
order.



Harter told Pal mer that he assuned that the blast he heard
on the decline was the 918 South because that was the only bl ast
that he expected. He clained that he did not find out that there
was a second blast until after he got out of the mne. He
further averred that he would not have gone into the 906, or
al | oned anyone else to go into the 906, if he had known a bl ast
was going to be directly above it.

I n Decenber 1994, Ceballos and Harter were inforned that
MSHA i ntended to seek civil penalties against them under section
110(c) of the Act. On Decenber 21, they sent a letter to MSHA
requesting a conference on the matter and setting out their
position. In the letter, they summed up their position as
fol |l ows:

[We believe that MSHA may have the m staken
i npressions that three enpl oyees entered the 906 south
prior to the 918 north blast (the final blast), that

the bl ast caused the ground fall, and that the three
enpl oyees were non-supervisory. None of these
i npressions are [sic] accurate. Instead, as the facts

recited above show, Ceball os knew there would be
blasting in the 918 north, the three of themdid not
enter the 906 south until after the 918 bl ast took
pl ace, the ground fall did not occur as part of the
bl ast, but took place approximtely 15 to 20 m nutes
| ater

(Govt. Ex. G at 2.)

By the tine of the hearing, the Respondents had added nore
details to their version of the incident. For the first tine,
they clainmed that the blast in the 918 South was a “slab” round
while the blast in the 918 North was a “face” round. The
significance of this is that a slab round uses | ess expl osive
than does a face round and is, therefore, not as |loud. Thus, at
the hearing, Ceballos testified, “I knew there was two bl asts
that were going to go off, but I only expected to hear one.”
(Tr. 335.)

Wth regard to what he initially told the inspectors,
Ceballos testified as foll ows:

Q D dyou tell Inspector Mall or Inspector Tomany
that you heard a blast while you were on the decline on
Decenber 77?

A, Yes.



Q Didyou tell themwhether or not you thought that
bl ast was fromthe 918 North or the 918 Sout h?

A | don't recall exactly if | told themit was.

Q D dyoutell Inspectors Mall or Tomany that you
heard the blast of the 918 North while you were in the
906 Sout h?

A. No, | didn't.

Q Do you recall whether or not Inspector Mall accused
you of m staking the blast that you heard on the
decline for the 918 South bl ast as opposed to the 918
North bl ast?

A. | know there was a | ot of confusion in there when
they were asking a lot of questions. | was really
confused in that open discussion.

(Tr. 342.)

Qovi ously, when an inspector arrives to investigate an
accident after it has happened he nust rely on what the w tnesses
tell himand what physical evidence is available. 1In this case,
| nspector Mall did just that and concluded that a violation of
section 57.6375 had occurred. Wiile the conpany argued with him
about the citation after he gave it to them and during the
cl ose-out conference, no one asserted that he had the facts
wWr ong.

Now t he conpany all eges that is exactly what happened.
However, | do not credit the revised version for the foll ow ng
reasons. The statenents given by witnesses at the tinme cl osest
to the incident, when the details are freshest in their m nds,
and before they have had the opportunity to fornmul ate statenents
favorable to their own, or the conpany’s, cause, are nore
reliable than the witnesses’ later statenents.* Further, the
Respondents did not raise this new scenari o when given the
citation or at the close-out conference. Nor did they question
the inspectors facts. Finally, Jack Bingham GCeneral Manager of

4 At the hearing, Ceballos only specifically denied telling
the inspector that he heard the 918 North blast while in the 906
South. He either could not “recall” making other statenents or
was “confused.”



the m ne, unequivocally stated that he felt the second bl ast
while at the end of the 906 Sout h.

Respondents have attacked Binghams credibility on the
grounds that his statenment is hearsay, that his ability to
di stingui sh sensations is questionable, apparently because he was
not wearing his hearing aid underground, and that the slab round
in the 918 South was too small to be heard. While it is true
t hat Bi nghamis statenent is hearsay, | credit it because at the
time that it was nmade, it was an adm ssion, or, at a mninmm a
decl aration against interest, and because Respondents had
subpoenaed Binghamto testify at the hearing, but announced at
t he begi nning of the second day that they did not intend to cal
him Since they had the opportunity to rebut or explain the
hearsay statenment by the author of the statenment, but chose not
to, they cannot now argue that the statement is unreliable.

Wth regard to Binghamis ability to distinguish sensations,
| note that he stated that he felt the blast, not that he heard
it. Furthernore, while there is no evidence concerning the
extent of his ability to hear, other than that he wore a hearing
aid, there is evidence that he, Ceballos and Harter held a
di scussion in the 906 so that he nust not have been totally deaf.

Finally, there is nothing in the record to indicate that the
slab round in question could not be heard. |In fact, Harter
stated that he was expecting a slab round to be used in the 918
Sout h and when he heard the blast on the decline, assuned that
was what he had heard.

| find that Bingham Harter and Ceballos were in the 906
South at the tinme of the blast in the 918 North and the resulting
ground fall. Since the conpany had determ ned that this was an
endangered area for such a blast, | conclude that the conpany
vi ol ated section 57.6375 by not clearing themfromthe area
bef ore bl asting.

Si gni fi cant and Substanti al

The Inspector found this violation to be “significant and
substantial.” A "significant and substantial" (S&S) violation is
described in section 104(d) (1) of the Act as a violation "of such
nature as could significantly and substantially contribute to the
cause and effect of a coal or other mne safety or health
hazard.” A violation is properly designated S&S "if, based upon
the particular facts surrounding that violation, there exists a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that the hazard contributed to will result

10



inan injury or illness of a reasonably serious nature." Cenent
Di vision, National Gypsum Co., 3 FMSHRC 822, 825 (April 1981).

In Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMBHRC 1, 3-4 (January 1984), the
Comm ssion set out four criteria that have to be net for a
violation to be S&S. See also Buck Creek Coal, Inc. v. FNMSHRC,
52 F. 3d 133, 135 (7th Cr. 1995); Austin Power, Inc. V.
Secretary, 861 F.2d 99, 103-04 (5th Cr. 1988), aff'g Austin
Power, Inc., 9 FMSHRC 2015, 2021 (Decenber 1987) (approving
Mat hies criteria). Evaluation of the criteria is made in terns
of "continued normal m ning operations.”" U S. Steel Mning Co.
Inc., 6 FMBHRC 1573, 1574 (July 1984). The question of whether a
particular violation is significant and substantial nust be based
on the particular facts surrounding the violation. Texasqgulf,
Inc., 10 FMSHRC 498 (April 1988); Youghi ogheny & Chio Coal Co., 9
FMSHRC 1007 (Decenber 1987).

Appl ying the Mathies criteria, | have already found (1),
that the conpany violated a mandatory safety standard. | further
find: (2) That this violation contributed to a neasure of danger
to safety, i.e. blasting is inherently dangerous, those within an
area endangered by a blast could be blown up, hit by flyrock, or,
as occurred in this case, caught by a ground fall; (3) That there
is a reasonable |ikelihood that a ground fall would result in an
injury; and (4) That there is a reasonable |ikelihood that the
injury would be reasonably serious in nature, involving
significant cuts and brui ses, broken bones or death.

Unwar r ant abl e Failure

The i nspector found this violation to be the result of an
“unwarrantabl e failure” on the conpany’s part. The Conmm ssion
has held that unwarrantable failure is aggravated conduct
constituting nore than ordi nary negligence by a mne operator in
relation to a violation of the Act. Enmery Mning Corp., 9 FMSHRC
1997, 2004 (Decenber 1987); Youghi ogheny & Chio Coal Co., 9
FMBHRC 2007, 2010 (Decenber 1987). “Unwarrantable failure is
characterized by such conduct as ‘reckless disregard,
‘“intentional m sconduct,’ ‘indifference’ or a ‘serious |ack of
reasonabl e care.’” [Enmery] at 2003-04; Rochester & Pittsburgh Coa
Corp. 13 FMSHRC 189, 193-94 (February 1991).” Wom ng Fuel Co.,
16 FMSHRC 1618, 1627 (August 1994).

Cebal |l os and Harter both stated that they would not have

gone into the 906 South if they had known that there was going to
be a blast in the 918 North. Thus, they were clearly aware of

11



t he danger involved. Ceballos thought that it was safe to go
into the 906 because he assuned that the blast he heard on the
decline was the 918 North bl ast.

There is no evidence of intentional m sconduct in this case.
| believe the Respondents when they state that they would not
have gone into the 906 if they had known the 918 was going to be
bl asted. However, that does not renove this case fromthe
unwarrant abl e failure category.

Ceballos, a mner with at | east 18 years experience, the
person normally in charge of blasting operations, knew that plans
had changed from bl asting the 918 South to blasting the 918 North
and South. He knew this because Schlichting told himso just
prior to the nmen going down the decline past the 918s to the 906.
He heard one bl ast and concluded that the 906 was safe. | find
that this conclusion was not a reasonable one. Cf. Wom ng Fuel
Co. at 1628-29.

A supervisor in his position and with his experience shoul d
have done nore. Knowi ng that there were going to be two bl asts,
and hearing only one, nade it incunbent on himto verify that
bot h bl asts had been perforned before entering the 906. Wile
failure to do that does not rise to “intentional m sconduct” or
even “reckless disregard,” it is nore than ordi nary negligence.

12



| conclude that the failure to confirmthat the 918 North had
been bl asted before entering the 906 constitutes “indifference”
or a “serious |lack of reasonable care” and that, therefore, the
violation resulted fromthe conpany’s unwarrantable failure.

Section 110(c) viol ations

The Secretary has all eged that Cebal |l os and Harter
“knowi ngly” violated section 57.6375 and are personally |iable
under section 110(c) of the Act.> Based on the evidence, | find
t hat Ceball os “knowi ngly” carried out the violation, but Harter
did not.

The Conmm ssion set out the test for determ ning whether a
corporate agent has acted “know ngly” in Kenny Richardson, 3
FMSHRC 8, 16 (January 1981), aff’'d, 689 F.2d 623 (6th Cr. 1982),
cert. denied, 461 U S. 928 (1983), when it stated: “If a person
in a position to protect safety and health fails to act on the
basis of information that gives himknow edge or reason to know
of the existence of a violative condition, he has acted know ngly
and in a manner contrary to the renedial nature of the statute.”
The Comm ssion has further held, however, that to violate section
110(c), the corporate agent’s conduct nust be “aggravated,” i.e.
it nmust involve nore than ordinary negligence. Wom ng Fuel Co.,
supra at 1630; BethEnergy Mnes, Inc., 14 FVMSHRC 1232, 1245
(August 1992); Enery M ning Corp., supra at 2003-04.

In Roy denn, 6 FVMSHRC 1583, 1586 (July 1984), the
Comm ssi on expanded the test to cover a situation where the
viol ation does not exist at the time of the agent’s failure to
act, but occurs after the failure, when it said:

Accordingly, we hold that a corporate agent in a
position to protect enployee safety and heal th has
acted ‘knowingly’, in violation of section 110(c) when,
based upon facts available to him he either knew or
had reason to know that a violative condition or
conduct woul d occur, but he failed to take appropriate
prevent ative steps.

That describes the situation in this case.

As a supervisor, Ceballos was in a position to protect
enpl oyee safety by not taking the tour into the 906 South until
after the blast in the 918 North. He knew, based on what
Schlichting told him that both sections of the 918 were going to

> See n.1, supra, for the provisions of this section.
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be blasted. He knew that if they went in the 906 before the 918
North blast that he would be in an area endangered by the bl ast.
Finally, he failed to take appropriate preventative steps, that
is to insure that the 918 North blast had occurred before
entering the 906 Sout h.

As set out above, this was aggravated conduct involving nore
t han ordi nary negligence. Accordingly, | conclude that Lorenzo
Cebal | os knowi ngly carried out the violation of section 57.6375
and is, therefore, personally liable under section 110(c).

The sane, however, cannot be said about Harter. He knew
only that the 918 South was to be blasted. No one knew that both
the North and South were going to be blasted until Schlichting
i nformed Ceballos of that during the tour. Wile Harter was
present when Schlichting told Ceball os of the change, neither
Schlichting nor Ceballos could say whether Harter heard the
conversation. Both doubted it. Ceballos said that Schlichting
spoke directly into his ear because there was a fan in the area.

Ceballos testified that when they passed the 918 on the
decline he infornmed Harter that they could not go into that area
because they were blasting. Harter naintained that he did not
hear Schlichting tell Ceballos that the 918 North was al so goi ng
to be blasted and that he did not know that the 918 North was
bl asted until after he got out of the m ne.

Since there is no evidence to contradict it, | credit
Harter’'s claimthat he thought only the 918 South was to be
bl asted and that when he heard the bl ast he thought it was safe
to enter the 906 South. Ceballos’ statenent about not being able
to go into “that area” because they were bl asting was not
specific enough to put Harter on notice that the situation, as he
understood it, had changed. Consequently, | concl ude that
Tinmothy Harter did not knowi ngly carry out the violation of
section 57.6375 and is not personally |iable under section
110(c).

CVIL PENALTY ASSESSMENT

The Secretary has proposed civil penalties of $1,500.00 for
t he conpany and $1, 000. 00 for Ceballos for this violation.
However, it is the judge’'s independent responsibility to
determ ne the appropriate anount of a penalty, in accordance with
the six criteria set out in section 110(i) of the Act, 30 U S. C
8§ 820(i). Sellersburg Stone Co. v. FMSHRC, 736 F.2d 1147, 1151
(7th Cr. 1984).
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In connection with the six criteria, | note fromthe
pl eadi ngs that the Bullfrog mne is a nediumsize gold mne and
that LAC Bullfrog, Inc., is a nmediumsize conpany. The violation
hi story does not indicate an excessive nunber of violations.
There is no evidence that paynment of a civil penalty wll
adversely affect the conpany’s ability to remain in business. On
the other hand, the gravity of the violation is serious and
i nvol ved a high degree of negligence. Taking all of this into
consideration, | conclude that the penalty proposed by the
Secretary is appropriate.

Qovi ously, except for the gravity of the violation, none of
the penalty criteria apply to an individual. However, taking
into consideration the gravity of the violation and M. Ceball os’
position with the conpany, | find that the penalty proposed by
the Secretary is sonewhat high. | conclude that a penalty of
$500.00 is appropriate in this case.

ORDER

The civil penalty petition against Tinothy Harter is
DI SM SSED. Gitation No. 4130929 issued to LAC Bullfrog, Inc. and
the civil penalty petition alleging that Lorenzo Ceball os
knowi ngly carried out the violation in the citation are AFFI RVED
Accordingly, LAC Bullfrog, Inc., or its successor,® and Lorenzo
Cebal | o0s are ORDERED TO PAY civil penalties of $1,500.00 and
$500. 00, respectively, within 30 days of this decision. On
recei pt of paynent, these proceedi ngs are DI SM SSED

T. Todd Hodgdon
Adm ni strative Law Judge

Di stribution:
Jeanne M Col by, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnent

of Labor, 71 Stevenson St., Room 1110, San Francisco, CA 94105-
2999 (Certified Mail)

6 In a subsequent hearing involving this conpany, counsel
for the Respondent advised that the m ne was now owned by Barrick
Bul | frog, | ncorporated.
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Charles W Newcom Esq., Andrew W Volin, Esq., Sherman & Howard
L.L.C., 633 17th St., Suite 3000, Denver, CO 80202 (Certified
Mai | )
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